2002

Jau-Fei Chen, Chi Wei Zhang, E. Lei Zhang and
E.E. Zhang v. Jau-Hwa Stewart, E Excel
International, Inc.; E. Excel International, Inc. v. Taig
Stewart, Beverly Warner, Angela Barclay, Dale
Stewart and Hwan Lan Chen: Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_ca2

 Part of the [Law Commons](#)

Original Brief Submitted to the Utah Court of Appeals; digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, Brigham Young University, Provo, Utah; machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

Daniel L. Berman; Stephen R. Waldron; Berman, Tomsic and Savage; Thomas Stevenson; Stevenson and Smith; attorneys for third party defendant/appellant.

Michael R. Carlston; Snow, Christensen and Martineau; Attorneys for Plaintiffs/Appellees.

Recommended Citation

Brief of Appellant, *Chen v. Stewart*, No. 20020777 (Utah Court of Appeals, 2002).
https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu_ca2/3976

This Brief of Appellant is brought to you for free and open access by BYU Law Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in Utah Court of Appeals Briefs by an authorized administrator of BYU Law Digital Commons. Policies regarding these Utah briefs are available at http://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/utah_court_briefs/policies.html. Please contact the Repository Manager at hunterlawlibrary@byu.edu with questions or feedback.

IN THE UTAH SUPREME COURT

JAU-FEI CHEN, individually and as the natural
guardian of CHI WEI ZHANG, E. LEI ZHANG,
and E. E. ZHANG, her minor children,

Plaintiffs/Appellees,

vs.

JAU-HWA STEWART, E. EXCEL
INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Utah corporation, and
Does I through X,

Defendants/Appellant.

E. EXCEL INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Utah
corporation,

Third-Party Plaintiff.

vs.

TAIG STEWART; BEVERLY WARNER;
ANGELA BARCLAY; DALE STEWART;
HWAN LAN CHEN, et al.

Third Party Defendants/Cross
Appellants

Supreme Court No. 20020777

UTAH SUPREME COURT
BRIEF

UTAH
DOCUMENT
KFU

45.9

.59

DOCKET NO. 200220777

APPENDIX TO
BRIEF OF APPELLANT HWAN LAN CHEN

APPEAL FROM A CONTEMPT RULING AND ORDER ENTERED IN THE
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT, UTAH COUNTY, STATE OF UTAH, THE
HONORABLE FRED D. HOWARD PRESIDING

Michael R. Carlston
Snow, Christensen & Martineau
10 Exchange Place, Eleventh Floor
P. O. Box 45000
Salt Lake City, Utah 84145-5000
Attorneys for Plaintiff/Appellee Jau-Fei Chen

FILED
UTAH APPELLATE COURTS
MAR - 1 2004

Daniel L. Berman (0304)
Stephen R. Waldron (6810)
BERMAN, TOMSIC & SAVAGE
50 South Main, Suite 1250
Salt Lake City, Utah 84144
(801) 328-2200

II Thomas Stevenson (6803)
STEVENSON & SMITH, P.C.
3986 Washington Blvd.
Ogden, Utah 84403
Attorneys for Third Party
Defendant/Appellant

IN THE UTAH SUPREME COURT

JAU-FEI CHEN, individually and as the natural guardian of CHI WEI ZHANG, E. LEI ZHANG, and E. E. ZHANG, her minor children,)	
)	
Plaintiffs/Appellees,)	Supreme Court No. 20020777
vs.)	
)	
JAU-HWA STEWART, E. EXCEL INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Utah corporation, and Does I through X,)	
)	
Defendants/Appellant.)	
)	
<hr/>		
E. EXCEL INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Utah corporation,)	
)	
Third-Party Plaintiff.)	
vs.)	
)	
TAIG STEWART; BEVERLY WARNER; ANGELA BARCLAY; DALE STEWART; HWAN LAN CHEN, et al.)	
)	
Third Party Defendants/Cross Appellants)	

**APPENDIX TO
BRIEF OF APPELLANT HWAN LAN CHEN**

APPEAL FROM A CONTEMPT RULING AND ORDER ENTERED IN THE
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT, UTAH COUNTY, STATE OF UTAH, THE
HONORABLE FRED D. HOWARD PRESIDING

Michael R. Carlston
Snow, Christensen & Martineau
10 Exchange Place, Eleventh Floor
P. O. Box 45000
Salt Lake City, Utah 84145-5000
Attorneys for Plaintiff/Appellee Jau-Fei Chen

Daniel L. Berman (0304)
Stephen R. Waldron (6810)
BERMAN, TOMSIC & SAVAGE
50 South Main, Suite 1250
Salt Lake City, Utah 84144
(801) 328-2200

H. Thomas Stevenson (6803)
STEVENSON & SMITH, P.C.
3986 Washington Blvd.
Ogden, Utah 84403
Attorneys for Third Party
Defendant/Appellant

INDEX

Tab

Plaintiff's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law in Connection with Plaintiff's Motion for Order to Show Cause Why Ms. Stewart Should Not be Held in Civil and Criminal Contempt of Court and Plaintiff's Motion for Order Summarily Holding Ms. Stewart in Criminal Contempt of Court, entered 8/20/02	A
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, entered 8/20/02	B
Motion for Sanctions and For Order to Show Cause Why Certain Third-Party Defendants Should Not Be Held in Civil Contempt, dated 9/27/02 and Errata to Motion for Sanctions and For Order to Show Cause Why Certain Third-Party Defendants Should Not Be Held in Civil Contempt dated 10/1/02	C
Memorandum in Support of Motion for Sanctions and For Order to Show Cause Why Certain Third-Party Defendants Should Not Be Held in Civil Contempt, dated 10/1/02	D
Acceptance of Service of Process of Hwan Lan Chen, dated 1/15/02	E
Notice of Entry of Appearance of Counsel, dated 12/17/01	F
Table Summarizing Percent of Evidence and Testimony Received Before Hwan Lan Chen Was Named As A Party In The Action Below	G
Table Summarizing Jones Waldo's Appearances for the Special Master	H
Table of Witnesses Called by Plaintiff or Jones Waldo During Combined Proceedings	I
Table of Exhibits Introduced by Plaintiff or Jones Waldo During Combined Proceedings	J

Tab A

FILED
Fourth Judicial District Court
of Utah County, State of Utah

8/20/02 MB Deputy

IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
UTAH COUNTY, STATE OF UTAH

JAU-FEI CHEN, individually and as the
natural guardian of CHI WEI ZHANG,
E. LEI ZHANG, and E. E. ZHANG, her
minor children,

Plaintiff,

vs.

JAU-HWA STEWART, E. EXCEL
INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Utah
Corporation, and DOES I through X,

Defendants.

E. EXCEL INTERNATIONAL, INC.,
a Utah corporation,

Cross-Claimant,

vs.

JAU-HWA STEWART,

Cross-Defendant.

E. EXCEL INTERNATIONAL, INC.,
a Utah corporation,

Third-Party Plaintiff,

vs.

PLAINTIFF'S FINDINGS OF FACT
AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW IN
CONNECTION WITH PLAINTIFF'S
MOTION FOR ORDER TO SHOW
CAUSE WHY MS. STEWART
SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN CIVIL
AND CRIMINAL CONTEMPT OF
COURT AND PLAINTIFF'S MOTION
FOR ORDER SUMMARILY
HOLDING MS. STEWART IN
CRIMINAL CONTEMPT OF COURT

[FILED UNDER SEAL]

Civil No. 010400098
Consolidated with 010400201

Judge Fred D. Howard - Division 9

TAIG STEWART; BEVERLY WARNER;
ANGELA BARCLAY; DALE STEWART;
HWAN LAN CHEN; SAM TZU; RICHARD
HU; APOGEE, INC., a Utah corporation;
APOGEE ESSENCE INTERNATIONAL
PHILIPPINES, INC., a Philippine corporation;
EXCELLENT ESSENTIALS
INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION, a
Philippine corporation; USA APOGEE, LTD.,
a Hong Kong corporation; SHANNON RIVER,
INC., a Utah corporation; SHANNON
HEATON; SHEUE WEN SMITH; BRYAN
HYMAN; PAUL COOPER; KIM O'NEILL;
BYRON MURRAY; and JOHN DOES I
THROUGH X,

Third-Party Defendants.

JAU-HWA STEWART,

Cross-Claimant,

vs.

E. EXCEL INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Utah
corporation; LARRY C. HOLMAN; and GARY
TAKAGI,

Cross-Defendants.

On June 22, 2001, Plaintiff Dr. Jau Fei Chen ("Dr. Chen") filed a Motion for Order to Show Cause Why Ms. Jau Hwa Stewart ("Ms. Stewart") Should Not Be Held In Civil And Criminal Contempt Of Court For Her Violation Of Court Orders in the first-filed action. On August 2, 2001, Dr. Chen Filed a Motion For Order Summarily Holding Ms. Stewart In Criminal Contempt Of Court in the first-filed action. The Motion filed in June of 2001, references two Orders of this Court, the Temporary Restraining Order dated January 10, 2001 that the Court extended without objection on January 24, 2001 ("TRO") (Exhibit 201), and the Interim Order dated February 21, 2001 ("Interim Order") (Exhibit 202). The latter Motion deals with evidence established in part by a telephone conversation among Ms. Stewart and Messrs. Richard Hu ("Mr. Hu") and Sam Tzu ("Mr. Tzu") (Exhibits 104, 276, 277, 504), which demonstrates that Ms. Stewart obstructed justice, suborned perjury and perjured herself during and in connection with the Preliminary Injunction hearing that began January 19, 2001, and which concluded with the entry of the Interim Order, on February 21, 2001. Plaintiff sought in the alternative an Order to Show Cause Why Ms. Stewart Should not be Held in Criminal Contempt of Court for obstructing justice and suborning perjury. Plaintiff sought leave to address this Motion at the Order to Show Cause hearing on the ground that principles of due process required as much because some of the contumacious conduct occurred outside the Court's presence. Tr. 10/25/01, at 23-24. The Court granted leave and such evidence was presented.

The OSC Motions and Motion for Order Summarily Holding Ms. Stewart in Contempt of Court came before the Court for evidentiary hearing and argument commencing October 25, 2001, and were also heard on October 26, 2001; November 27 and 28, 2001; December 10, 11, 12, and 13, 2001; February 21 and 22, 2002; March 13, 15, 18 and 19, 2002; April 17, 2002 (telephonic conference with the Court and counsel); May 7, 8, 10 and 31, 2002; and June 4, 5, 7, 25 and 26, 2002. In the same proceedings, the Court heard Excel USA's Motion for Preliminary Injunction which sought, among others, to preclude Ms. Stewart, her company Apogee, Inc., and others, from competing with E. Excel International, Inc. ("Excel USA"), and Ms. Stewart's Motion for Preliminary Injunction against Excel USA concerning certain issues relating to labeling its products. Because the evidence in relation to the forgoing motions was heard altogether, the Court considered all of the evidence as it is deemed to relate to each of the separate motions. To the extent evidence in support of the Preliminary Injunction motions is relevant and persuasive to Dr. Chen's Motions, the Court considers, and where appropriate, makes findings in connection with such evidence, by reference. As part of the OSC hearing, and in the interests of judicial economy, the Court took judicial notice of the Preliminary Injunction proceedings that had occurred in the first-filed action from January 19, 2001 through February 21, 2001, wherein Dr. Chen was represented by Michael R. Carlston, Richard A. Van Wagoner and David L. Pinkston of the law firm of Snow, Christensen & Martineau, and Ms. Stewart was represented by Willis

Orton, Eric Olson and the law firm Kirton & McConkie, and David Jordan of the law firm Steel Rives.

In the OSC proceedings and proceedings on the Motion for Order Summarily Holding Ms. Stewart in Contempt of Court, Dr. Chen was represented by Michael R. Carlston, Richard A. Van Wagoner and David L. Pinkston of Snow, Christensen & Martineau. In these Motions as well as the Preliminary Injunction Motions, Ms. Stewart was represented by Mark A. Larsen and Jerome H. Mooney of the law firm of Larsen and Mooney. Excel USA was represented by Deno Himonas and Adam Price of the law firm Jones, Waldo, Holbrook and McDonough. The Court, having considered extensive evidence including the live and deposition testimony of numerous witnesses, numerous Exhibits, the stipulations of counsel, and the arguments of counsel, and now being fully apprised in the premises and good cause appearing therefor, hereby finds the following Facts:

I. FINDINGS OF FACT

BACKGROUND: DR. CHEN, EXCEL USA, EXCEL LTD., CONTRACTS WITH TERRITORIAL OWNERS AND COURSES OF PERFORMANCE

1. Dr. Chen was born in Taiwan in 1962. She is a member of a Chinese family that adheres to traditional deferring to decision making authority of the elder member of the family. She is the youngest of five children. Sheue Wen Smith ("Ms. Smith") is her oldest sibling; Tei Fu Chen, her only brother, is second oldest. Next is Jau-Fang Chen who is married to Jimmy Lu, and then Ms. Stewart. Part of the Chinese tradition observed by her family was to respect the wishes

of and take instruction from elders. Another Chinese tradition was to share profits in business between and among family members, including in-laws. Tr. 2/8/01, at 170; Tr. 2/9/01, at 12-14.

2. Dr. Chen and most of her family moved to the United States when she was 16 years old. She was accepted as a student at Brigham Young University at 16, obtained her Bachelors degree in microbiology with a minor in chemistry at 19, obtained her Masters degree in microbiology at 21 and obtained her Ph.D. in microbiology with an emphasis in immunology at 26. Tr. 2/8/01, at 170.

3. Dr. Chen married Mr. Rui Kang Zhang ("Mr. Zhang") when she was 25 years old. Tr. 2/8/01, at 172.

4. Dr. Chen and Mr. Zhang are the natural parents of E.E. Zhang, a daughter, E. Lei Zhang, a daughter, and Chi Wei Zhang, a son. The three children are minors. Tr. 2.8/01, at 169.

5. Excel USA was incorporated on July 20, 1987. Dr. Chen, her husband Mr. Zhang and her parents were the original directors and incorporators. Dr. Chen was president and the sole shareholder. Six thousand shares of stock were issued to Dr. Chen represented by Stock Certificate 0001. Tr. 2/8/01, at 171-73; Tr. 2/9/01, at 54; Exhibits 17, 18, 19, 37.

6. Excel USA manufactures health-related products and sells them through a multi-level network marketing system. Dr. Chen became familiar with multi-level marketing networks, in part, from Tei-Fu Chen, who operated Sunrider, a company that manufactured products and sold them through multi-level marketing networks, and Ms. Stewart who, at the time of Excel USA's

inception, was working at Sunrider. At Sunrider, Ms. Stewart served as the personal assistant to Tei-Fu Chen. Tr. 2/8/01, at 174-75, 181.

7. Ms. Stewart left Sunrider and became an employee and the vice-president of Excel USA in the early 1990s. Relatively soon thereafter, Ms. Stewart assumed responsibility for day-to-day operations and control of executive decisions at Excel USA. Tr. 2/8/01, at 182-83. This occurred in part because of the knowledge and expertise she acquired while working for Sunrider and in part because she was the elder sister to Ms. Chen. Ms. Stewart's responsibilities included, but were not limited to, controlling and managing all daily operations of Excel USA, tracking Excel USA's finances and cash flow, authorizing purchases of materials within the United States, arranging for credit, and assuring that bills were paid, orders were filled and properly invoiced, product was manufactured, bank statements were reconciled, and wires transfers were confirmed. Tr. 2/9/01, at 35-36, 63-67, 82. She also participated directly in communicating with the foreign distribution companies known as "Territorial Owners" concerning the information that would be included in the product labels for their respective countries. Tr. 2/9/01, at 125. Ms. Stewart was intimately familiar with and aware of Excel USA's exclusive contracts and courses of dealing with the Territorial Owners in, among others, Malaysia, Taiwan, Hong Kong and The Philippines. Tr. 2/8/01, at 158; Tr. 2/9/01, at 125.

8. At a point during the early 1990s, the make up of Excel USA's officers and board of directors changed. Dr. Chen was and remained the president of Excel USA and chairperson of

the board, her husband Mr. Zhang remained a director and was secretary of Excel USA, and her sister Ms. Stewart became the vice-president of Excel USA and a director. Dr. Chen's parents were removed from the board of directors. Tr. 2/8/01, at 30, 63; Tr. 10/26/01, at 5-6.

9. Dr. Chen's goal for Excel USA was to successfully promote the development of products that would enhance people's health through what was called "nutritional immunology." Tr. 2/8/01, at 171.

10. Excel USA grew to become a successful business. It began by manufacturing and selling approximately 20 product lines, and eventually manufactured and marketed well over 100 product lines. Excel USA sold its products to exclusive Territorial Owners that were located in countries such as Korea, Taiwan, Phillippines, Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore, U.S.A. and France. Excel USA also marketed its products in Canada through a wholly owned affiliate, Dunnkirk, Inc. Tr. 2/8/01, at 173-75, 184-85; Tr. 3/15/02, at 46-47.

11. Excel USA's growth and success were due in large part to Dr. Chen as Excel USA's charismatic founder and leader. Dr. Chen's involvement as the Excel USA spokesperson and symbolic representative of its products was critical to the company's success as a result of the overall public relations and marketing plan. Dr. Chen is closely identified with Excel USA and its products throughout the distribution channels in the countries in which Excel USA sells its products. Photographs and articles featuring her as the founder of Excel USA, and as having developed the Excel USA products consistent with "nutritional immunology," were and are

prominently displayed in the Territorial Owners' publications and promotional materials and those of Excel USA. Consumers and distributors of Excel USA products became loyal to Excel USA and utilize Excel USA's products in large measure because of Dr. Chen's identity with the products, and their trust in the products because of their confidence in Dr. Chen. The Territorial Owners also considered Dr. Chen to be the leader of Excel USA marketing and product sales. As Excel USA's founder and charismatic leader, Dr. Chen traveled frequently and extensively, promoting "nutritional immunology" through use of Excel USA products, by speaking at conventions sponsored by Territorial Owners and giving seminars and training sessions in the countries where Excel USA products were sold. These characteristics are exemplified in the testimony of one Territorial Owner:

Q. Okay. From your point of view, [as] the distributor in Taiwan, what importance does Dr. Chen's relationship to this product have?

A. I think I always talk to people that Dr. Chen is the treasure of the company. She is the spirit of the company. So people in Taiwan, we need her to support us, to hear her speech. . . .

Q. What role does trust play in your billings?

A. . . . The network marketing has become like trust. We trust each other, then make an organization to get together to become--trust each other. Then we have the belief in the product, belief in the company, then become loyal. So trust is the basis of the business. That is the foundation of the business.

Tr. 1/24/01, at 18-19, 67-68, 152-53; Tr. 2/2/01, at 37-40; Tr. 2/8/01, at 185; Tr. 2/9/01, at 62-63, 86-90; Exhibits 76 and 547.

12. Dr. Chen's role is also illustrated by an Excel USA publication entitled *A Profile of Excellence*, dated June 1, 2000:

Excellence is the result of knowledge, vision, and perseverance. Each of these qualities personifies Dr. Jau-Fei Chen--a gifted scientist, businesswoman, wife, mother, and role model for people all over the world. Through innovation, creativity, and hard work, Dr. Chen successfully balances these varying facets of her life. By overcoming challenges, she accomplishes her dreams and continues to impact the overall health of humankind.

Dr. Chen has devoted her life to studying the vital relationship between nutrition and the human immune system--a science Dr. Chen has termed *Nutritional Immunology*. Because of her deep commitment to the improvement of health, Dr. Chen remains one of the world's most noted immunologists. In 1987, Dr. Chen founded E. Excel International, Inc. in hopes of teaching others how to prevent--rather than treat--sickness and disease through a properly nourished immune system. As people learn about E. Excel's Nutritional Immunology, they also have the desire to share this important message with others.

Although Dr. Chen serves as president of E. Excel International, she still finds time to conduct her own research and keep abreast of the latest studies so she can continue to formulate products with maximum nutritional benefits. Dr. Chen has shared her passion for science and nutrition with the world through both research and education. As a result, her message of better health will be passed on to future generations.

This special publication profiles the honorable mission and diverse accomplishments of a truly visionary and dedicated woman--Dr. Jau-Fei Chen--a woman who exemplifies excellence.

Exhibit 76.

13. Excel USA commenced doing business with E. Excel International (Taiwan), Inc. ("Excel Taiwan"), in 1990, and began shipping product to Excel Taiwan even before the parties entered an exclusive distribution contract. On August 19, 1990, Excel USA and Excel Taiwan entered into an exclusive distribution contract for Taiwan. During a ceremony marking the event,

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