2002

# Jau-Fei Chen, Chi Wei Zhang, E. Lei Zhang and E.E. Zhang v. Jau-Hwa Stewart : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

1. MS. STEWART CANNOT CLAIM, FOR THE FIRST TIME ON APPEAL, THE COURT LACKED AUTHORITY TO STRIKE HER PLEADINGS.

Ms. Stewart asserts that she preserved the issue of the court's authority to strike her pleadings as a sanction for contempt at R. 7182-7438 (Trial Brief), R. 14291: 127-214 (oral argument), R. 6060-6094 (Motion to Dismiss for failure to produce Dr. Chen and Mr. Zhang). Dr. Chen respectfully disagrees that Ms. Stewart preserved such issue at any of those references. This Court should decline to consider the claim now, since it is raised for the first time on appeal.

2. THE COURT'S ACTION WAS NEITHER CAPRICIOUS NOR ARBITRARY.

Ms. Stewart willfully violated the TRO. She willfully violated the Interim Order. She conspired to obstruct justice and carried out her plan. She displayed contempt for the court's authority and for the oath she swore to tell the truth. Her plan to prevent Dr. Chen, her children and other litigants from having the opportunity to present their grievances and receive a fair hearing nearly succeeded. Her actions made it impossible for such to now ever occur. She defrauded the court through the spoliation of evidence which, to this day, has not been returned. The "missing" evidence would undoubtedly further confirm the wrongful nature of the identified acts. The trial court could protect innocent litigants and the integrity of cases entrusted to the court in no other way.

The trial court has broad discretion in the exercise of its contempt power, both civil and criminal, which will not be disturbed except for action "which is so unreasonable as to be classified as capricious and arbitrary, or a clear abuse of . . . discretion." *Shipman v.*

*Evans*, 2004 UT 44, ¶¶ 39-41 (citations omitted). This Court stated in *Von Hake v. Thomas*, 759 P.2d 1162, 1166-67 (Utah 1988):

Utah law on the subject of contempt must be drawn together from case law and from statutes. The earliest law in this area is decisional and based on the common law. The substantive and procedural rules were then altered by statute. This legislation was not comprehensive, and our subsequent decision seem to take the position that to the extent the common law was not inconsistent with the statutes, its survives and can continue to evolve.

A trial court's power to act in the administration of justice is well established. Courts have "inherent powers not derived from any statute" to control the proceedings before them. *See Griffith v. Griffith*, 1999 UT 78, ¶ 13, 985 P.2d 255 (citing *In re Evans*, 130 P. 217, 224-25 (Utah 1913)). This Court has long held:

[C]ourts of general and superior jurisdiction possess certain inherent powers not derived from any statute. Among these are the power to punish for contempt, to make, modify, and enforce rules for the regulation of the business before the court, to amend its record and proceedings, to recall and control its process, . . . . Such inherent powers of courts are necessary to the proper discharge of their duties. . . . [A] constitutional court of general and superior jurisdiction may exercise such inherent powers and summary jurisdiction as the necessity of the case may require, and in manner comporting with a proper discharge of its duties in the premises.

*In re Evans*, 130 P. 217, 224-25 (Utah 1913).<sup>82</sup> A court may use these inherent powers to sanction litigants. In appropriate cases, a court can impose the sanction of dismissal by default.<sup>83</sup>

---

<sup>82</sup>Ms. Stewart suggests that the legislature has limited the court's ability to fashion appropriate remedies in its administration of justice. Stewarts' Brief, at 52-53. Where the contumacious conduct goes to the heart of the integrity of the judicial process, the court, as a coordinate branch of government, does have the inherent authority to control the proceedings before it. *See In the interest of J.E.S.*, 817 P.2d 508, 511-13 (Colo. 1991) (legislature may not unduly limit sanctions for contumacious conduct).

<sup>83</sup>*See Chambers v. NASCO, Inc.*, 501 U.S. 32 (1991); *Pope v. Federal Express Corp.*, 974 F.2d 982, 984 (8th Cir. 1992). *Cf. Archibeque v. Atchison, Topeka and Santa*

Ms. Stewart’s characterization of the court’s authority to strike pleadings as a sanction for contempt was incomplete. She improperly labeled the trial court’s action “mere punishment” for contumacious conduct. This is not true. While courts have held that a court may not strike an answer and issue default for contumacious conduct *unrelated* to the merits of the case, *Hovey v. Elliot*, 167 U.S. 409, 413-14 (1897), the opposite is true when the misconduct of a party interferes with the fairness of the proceeding. *Hammond Packing Co. v. Arkansas*, 212 U.S. 322, 350-51 (1909).<sup>84</sup>

The “striking of pleadings, entering of default, and rendering of judgment against a disobedient party are the most severe of the potential sanctions that can be imposed upon a . . . party.” *Utah Department of Transp. v. Osguthorpe*, 892 P.2d 4, 8 (Utah 1995). Where a party willfully, however, or in bad faith fails to comply with a court order that undermines

---

*Fe Ry. Co.*, 70 F.3d 1172 (10th Cir. 1995).

<sup>84</sup>The *Hammond* Court explained:

The proceeding here taken may therefore find its sanction in the undoubted right of the lawmaking power to create *a presumption of fact as to the bad faith and untruth* of an answer to be gotten from the suppression or failure to produce the proof ordered, *when such proof concerned the rightful decision of the cause*. In a sense, of course, the striking out of the answer and default was a punishment, but it was only remotely so, as the generating source of the power was the right to create a presumption flowing from the failure to produce. The difference between mere punishment, as illustrated in *Hovey v. Elliott*, and the power exerted in this, is as follows: *In this, the preservation of due process was secured by the presumption that the refusal to produce evidence material to the administration of due process was but an admission of the want of merit in the asserted defense.*

212 U.S. at 350-51 (emphasis supplied).

the integrity of the cause, this sanction is appropriate.<sup>85</sup> *Id.* (prejudice to government resulted from party's discovery abuses, justifying the striking of landowner's answer). Such sanction in cases involving destruction or spoliation of evidence is particularly appropriate. Litigants have an "affirmative duty to preserve evidence which might be relevant to the issues in the lawsuit." *In re Wechsler*, 121 F. Supp. 2d 404, 415 (D. Del. 2000).<sup>86</sup>

The sanction of striking pleadings also serves "an important deterrent value." *Id.* at 429. "Imposing a dispositive sanction for this type of conduct punishes the wrongdoer for the severity of its culpable conduct, and serves to put the public on notice that this type of behavior will be punished severely." *Id.* Another court explained:

Permitting this lawsuit to proceed would be an open invitation to abuse the judicial process. Litigants would infer they have everything to gain, and nothing to lose, if manufactured evidence merely is excluded while their lawsuit continues. Litigants must know that the courts are not open to a person who would seek justice by fraudulent means.

*Brady v. United States*, 877 F. Supp. 444, 453 (C.D. Ill. 1994). The court's authority and the appropriateness of the action taken are both beyond question.<sup>87</sup>

---

<sup>85</sup>Courts have employed their inherent powers to impose the sanction of default in cases involving behavior of the type in which Ms. Stewart engaged. *Brady v. United States*, 877 F. Supp. 444, 452 (C.D. Ill. 1994) (destruction of evidence); *Combs v. Rockwell Int'l Corp.*, 927 F.2d 486, 488 (9th Cir. 1991) (falsification of testimony), *Vargas v. Peltz*, 901 F. Supp. 1572, 1581 (S.D. Fla. 1995) (perjury and obstruction of justice).

<sup>86</sup>See L. Solum and S. Marzen, *Truth and Uncertainty: Legal Control of the Destruction of Evidence*, 36 Emory L.J. 1085, 1095-96 (Fall 1987) (summarizing cases applying inherent power).

<sup>87</sup>The trial court found Ms. Stewart in both civil and criminal contempt. Striking Ms. Stewart's pleadings was appropriate under either or both contempt findings. In the criminal context the remedy vindicated the court's authority through punishment for violation of Orders, and it was necessary to preserve the integrity of the proceedings and

3. MS. STEWART FAILED TO MARSHAL THE EVIDENCE.

Ms. Stewart failed to marshal the evidence<sup>88</sup> in support of her assertion that the trial court abused its discretion in striking her pleadings as a sanction for her contempt.<sup>89</sup> The properly marshaled evidence, as set forth in the Statement of Facts herein. Ms. Stewart's characterization of facts at pages 54-55 of her Brief are set in the light most favorable to herself and does not fulfill her marshaling obligation. Some material omissions follow: (a)

---

protect the administration of justice because the contumacious conduct (obstruction and spoliation) had made the proceedings inherently and irreparably unfair. For civil contempt striking the pleadings could be considered remedial because Ms. Stewart's contumacious activities made it certain that Dr. Chen could not receive the process she was due. Given Ms. Stewart's conduct, there was no way the trial court could otherwise administer justice. Ms. Stewart's obstruction and spoliation could be purged only by the court granting Dr. Chen the relief she sought in her Verified Complaint because Ms. Stewart had successfully hijacked the only vehicle through which Dr. Chen could obtain relief, the judicial process.

<sup>88</sup>Examples of improper marshaling include (a) the assertions that "there was little in the way of actual damage to E. Excel for any purported violation of the Interim Order or the [TRO]. Most of the criticized conduct was easily cured," Stewarts' Brief, at 54, and (b) the list of twelve categories of contumacious acts for which Ms. Stewart minimizes and mischaracterizes the injury to Excel USA: (1) Territorial Owners did not produce written contracts, so it was their own fault Ms. Stewart did not ship them product; (2) no cactus juice was damaged; (3) the rodents were removed within two days and Excel USA had had prior rodent problems; (4) product that was removed was returned; (5) Ms. Stewart was rarely at Excel USA when the violations occurred; (6) the surveillance system incurred no permanent damage; (7) missing reports were recreated at nominal cost; (8) analytical and toxicology reports were easily replaced; (9) Excel USA attorneys were given opportunity to review records in the possession of Ms. Stewart's counsel; (10) Ms. Stewart "made every reasonable effort to return any equipment, inventory, and corporate records removed from" Excel USA; and, (11) Taig Stewart returned more equipment and software than Excel USA claimed was missing; (12) \$1.925 million taken from Excel USA's operating account was repayment of a loan. *Id.* at 54-55.

<sup>89</sup>*See State v. Pena*, 869 P.2d 932, 936-38 (Utah 1994). The Court therefore is entitled to assume that the Contempt Findings are adequately supported by the evidence. *Utah Medical Products, Inc. v. Searcy*, 958 P.2d 228, 233 (Utah 1998).

Ms. Stewart obstructed justice, suborned perjury, and committed perjury; (b) Ms. Stewart refused to ship products to the Territorial Owners pursuant to their confirmed orders in the face of the TRO requiring her to do so, resulting in substantial damage to Territorial Owners and exposure to Excel USA, and she removed Excel USA's contracts with Territorial Owners and then asserted, in court, there were no contracts requiring such shipments; (c) Ms. Stewart used nominees and agents to do her bidding in order to prevent discovery of her involvement in violating the Orders, so her presence or absence at Excel USA's offices was of little consequence; (d) Ms. Warner's dismantling of the surveillance system allowed a number of nefarious events to take place without being preserved on video tape; (e) Ms. Stewart's return of *some* Excel USA property--some damaged and unusable--nearly eight months after she was ordered *immediately* to return the product deprived Excel USA of essential property to operate its business; (f) Ms. Stewart shipped product to Rogue Distributors in violation of the Orders, for which Excel USA never received payment and which the Rogue Distributors used to set up competing distribution systems to undermine the Territorial Owners' markets and good will; (g) Ms. Stewart established a competing enterprise on the broken back of Excel USA and recruited employees and former employees of Excel USA to assist her in establishing her enterprise in violation of the non-competition agreements which she caused to be removed from Excel USA's files and premises; (h) she approved of the placement of rodents in the Excel USA during the First Preliminary Injunction Hearing which threatened Excel USA's standing with the FDA, and the existence of the rodents was falsely reported to the court as the reason behind removal of the product; (i) Ms. Stewart to this day has failed to return significant quantities of documents; (j) there is no evidence in the record of a \$1.925

million loan Ms. Stewart made to Excel USA or of Board approval for repayment of the so-called loan; (k) Ms. Stewart's obstruction of justice, her spoliation of substantial quantities of documentary and electronic evidence, her removal of Excel USA's contracts with Territorial Owners, her removal of non-competition agreements, and her use of multiple nominees to prevent discovery of her flagrant and ongoing violations of the Orders, all demonstrate Ms. Stewart undermined the court's ability to administrate justice and Dr. Chen's right to a fair adjudication of her claims.

**C. MS. STEWART WAS ACCORDED DUE PROCESS.**

**1. MS. STEWART FAILED TO DEMAND A JURY.**

Rule 17, Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure, provides in part:

(c) All felony cases shall be tried by jury unless the defendant waives a jury in open court . . . .

(d) All other cases shall be tried without a jury unless the defendant makes written demand at least ten days prior to trial.  
. . .

Ms. Stewart did not demand a jury in writing or otherwise. The issue was not preserved.

**2. MS. STEWART CANNOT RAISE, FOR THE FIRST TIME ON APPEAL, THE SCOPE OF THE EVIDENCE.**

Ms. Stewart complains, for the first time on appeal, that the scope of the evidence the court considered was broader than alleged in the Contempt Motions, suggesting she was not on proper notice. The Court should decline to consider the claim now.

The Affidavits setting forth Ms. Stewart's conduct and the Contempt Motions are extensive and address her contumacious conduct in violation of the Orders, providing Ms. Stewart proper notice of the allegations of wrongdoing. *See* Addendum E; R. 2074, 2078,

2096, 2135. Moreover, certain of Ms. Stewart's contumacious conduct occurred during the pendency of the OSC Hearings, and as those matters were addressed, Ms. Stewart did not assert that she lacked notice of allegations of her ongoing violations, nor was she deprived the opportunity to respond.

3. MR. HOLMAN'S INVOLVEMENT DID NOT PREJUDICE MS. STEWART.

a. THE STEWARTS' ARGUMENTS CONCERNING THE SPECIAL MASTER ARE IMPROPER.

In its November 2002 Order, this Court dismissed, *sua sponte*, Ms. Stewart's and Taig Stewart's "issues dealing with the appointment of the Special Master." Addendum B. Despite this Order, the Stewarts spend a number of pages asserting the special master had an improper role in the OSC Hearings. Stewart's Brief, at 61-66. These arguments violate the letter and spirit of the Court's November 2002 Order.<sup>90</sup>

b. NO DUE PROCESS CLAIM WAS PRESERVED.

Until filing her Notice of Appeal, R. 8777, the Stewarts raised no concerns that Mr. Holman's involvement in the Preliminary Injunction Hearing on Excel USA's and Ms. Stewart's cross Motions, which were considered simultaneously with the OSC Hearings, tainted the OSC Hearings. The Court should decline to consider the claim now.

c. EVIDENCE DEVELOPED INDEPENDENT OF MR. HOLMAN'S INVOLVEMENT SUPPORTS THE ORDERS.

In its January 24, 2003 Order denying the Motion to Vacate, the trial court clarified:

---

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